(/ City and County of Swansea
\ "
\S Notice of Meeting
~

Cyngor Abertawe You are invited to attend a Meeting of the
Swansea Council

___.—-'""——__
Statutory Licensing Sub Committee

At: Council Chamber - Guildhall, Swansea
On: Thursday, 6 June 2019

Time: 10.00 am

Chair: Councillor Penny Matthews

Membership:
Councillors: L G Thomas and L V Walton

Agenda
Page No.

1 Apologies for Absence.
2 Disclosures of Personal and Prejudicial Interests.

www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests
3 Licensing Act 2003 - Section 17 Application for a Premises 1-26

Licence - 76 St Helen's Road, Swansea SA1 4BG.

/)

HC/er-J vf/’:\-f‘)
Huw Evans

Head of Democratic Services
Wednesday, 29 May 2019

Contact: Democratic Services - 01792 636923


file://ccwsvmprmg02/mgDataRoot/AgendaItemDocs/7/9/6/AI00007697/www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests

Agenda Iltem 3

gfa

Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

/

Report of the Divisional Licensing Officer

Statutory Licensing Sub Committee - 6 June 2019

Licensing Act 2003
Section 17 Application for a Premises Licence

1. Premises: 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. SA1 4BG

2. Applicant : Mr Shui Fa Zhang

3. Application for a Premises Licence

3.1 An application was received by this authority on the 16" April 2019.
3.2 This application proposes the following activities —

a) Supply of Alcohol off the premises —
Monday to Sunday 10:00hrs to 21:00hrs;

b) The opening times for the premises are proposed as:
Monday to Sunday 10:00hrs to 21:00hrs;

4. Background

4.1 The premises is a Chinese Supermarket which currently sells food and
now wishes to sell food which contains Alcohol and some Chinese
Beers. It is sited towards the end of St Helen’s Road, away from the city
centre. St Helen’s Road has predominately commercial properties with a
large number of takeaway outlets, restaurants and smaller supermarkets.
Within approximately 100 metres of this premises is the highly populated
residential areas of Sandfields and St Helen’s.

4.2 The applicant describes the premises in the application form as —

Chinese Supermarket which requires a licence for the sale of food
goods containing alcohol and the sale of some Chinese beers.

4.3 In section M which describes the steps the applicant intends to take to
promote the four licensing conditions the applicant states —

Page 1



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

No additional conditions are considered appropriate as this is an off
licence application where the terminal hour is 21:00 hours

4.4 There are three other premises along St Helen’s Road which have
premises licences for off sales of alcohol as follows —
e Tesco Express SJ41829
e Spar SJ23135
e Costcutter SJ23039

A location plan of the premises is attached at Appendix A.
A plan of the proposed premises is attached at Appendix B.
5. Promotion Of The Licensing Objectives
5.1 The Licensing Act 2003 contains four licensing objectives, namely:-
(i) Prevention of Crime and Disorder
(i) Public Safety
(iii) Prevention of Public Nuisance

(iv) Protection of Children from Harm

Each of these objectives is of equal importance and the application must
demonstrate how they are to be promoted.

6. RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS
6.1 Responsible Authorities

a) South Wales Police
Representations.

b) Trading Standards
Representations.

¢) Mid and West Wales Fire Authority
No representations.

d) Health and Safety
No representations.

e) Planning Authority
No representations.

f)  Pollution Division
No representations.

g) Child Protection
No representations.

Page 2



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

h)

i)

i)

7.1

Primary Care Trust/Local Health Board
No representations.

Licensing Authority
Representations.

Immigration
No representations.

Other Persons
No representations.

The representations referred to above cover all four licensing objectives
and are attached at Appendix. C

Policy Considerations

In considering this application Members should have regard to the
Council’s current statement of Licensing Policy adopted in July 2018.
Specifically in relation to this application;

Control — Section 4

(i) Paragraph 4.4 The Licensing Authority will primarily focus on the
direct impact of the activities taking place at the licensed
premises on members of the public, living, working or engaged
in normal activities in the area concerned. It will be expected that
any representation made by “Other Persons” will indicate how
the application will directly affect them in relation to one or more
of the licensing objectives.

Paragraph 4.5 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for
the general control of nuisance and anti-social behaviour by
individuals once they are away from the licensed premises and
beyond the direct control of the persons holding the relevant
authorisation.

(i) Licensing Hours — Section 7
Paragraph 7.1. When determining individual licence applications
for premises the licensing hours will be decided having regard to
the individual merits of each application. The presumption will be
to grant the hours as requested unless there are objections to
those hours raised by responsible authorities or other persons
on the basis of the licensing objectives.

Paragraph 7.4 The Licensing Authority will closely examine the

hours of business for premises which are situated in
predominantly residential areas and will impose strict conditions

Page 3



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

(iii)

relating to noise control where representations are received and
it is considered necessary.

Paragraph 7.5 The Licensing Authority will allow shops, stores
and supermarkets to sell alcohol, for consumption off the
premises, at any time when the retail outlet in question is open
for business. Limitations will only be imposed restricting the
times alcohol can be sold from such premises if representations
are received and there is evidence that the extended hours
cause the premises to be a focus of disorder and disturbance.

Applications for licences, certificates, authorisations and reviews
— Section 15

Paragraph 15.1 The Licensing Authority will consider each
application received on its merits in the context of the four
licensing objectives.

Paragraph 15.4 The Licensing Authority also accepts that Other
Persons or responsible authorities, as defined in the Act, have
the right to make representations in respect of an application, or
to seek a review of a licence or certificate within the provisions of
the Act. Such representations will be considered on their merits
and how they relate to the likely effect of the grant of the licence
or certificate on the promotion of at least one or more of the
licensing objectives. Also, how the representations are relevant
to the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives in the
case of a review of a licence or certificate. When a petition is
submitted as a representation it will only be considered if it
relates to one or more of the four licensing objectives and it is
demonstrated that the details of the representation have been
made clear to each signatory i.e. that the heading is included on
each page of the petition. A relevant representation may be
positive or supportive in nature as opposed to being negative but
it must still demonstrate that the licensing objectives are being
promoted.

Conditions

Paragraph 12.1 The Licensing Authority will only impose
conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate
which are consistent with the operating schedule and are
appropriate to promote the four licensing objectives. Standard
conditions will not be used. The Licensing Authority has
developed a pool of conditions, which are provided in the
guidance for applicants. This guidance has been produced to
assist applicants in completing their operating schedule. The
pool of conditions will be used to translate any non- specific
steps for the promotion of the licensing objectives, contained
within the operating schedule. Applicants are encouraged to
consider the use of this pool of conditions to address key issues

Page 4



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

when completing their operating schedule. (See paragraph 18).
All conditions should be -

Clear

Enforceable

Evidenced

Proportionate

Relevant

Be expressed in plain language capable of being understood by
those expected to comply with them

Paragraph 12.2 The Licensing Authority will only consider
imposing additional conditions on a licence where relevant
representations are received from responsible authorities

The Licensing Objectives

Paragraph 18.2. An applicant for a premises licence or club
premises certificate or for a variation of such a licence or
certificate will be expected to conduct a thorough risk
assessment with regard to the licensing objectives. The risk
assessment will indicate the necessary steps to be set out in the
operating schedule to promote the licensing objectives. The
operating schedule will be translated into conditions

Paragraph 18.4 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that the
steps an applicant may take to promote the licensing objectives
will vary depending on the type of premises and the licensable
activities taking place. Applicants are encouraged to consider
the guidance notes referred to in paragraph 12.1 when
completing their applications.

General Issues

Paragraph 19.1 The Council will work in conjunction with all
licensees, prospective licensees and statutory agencies to
promote the licensing objectives as required by the Act.

19.2 Where any uncertainty exists regarding aspects of
responsibilities or requirements the Council will work with the
applicants and statutory agencies to address the issue.

7.2 A full copy of the Authority’s Policy has previously been circulated to

8.1

Members.
An up to date copy of the Policy may be found via the following link:
https://www.swansea.gov.uk/article/4280/Statement-of-licensing-policy

Guidance Issued by the Home Secretary

Members should also have regard to the relevant parts of the current
guidance issued by the Home Secretary in April 2018, in particular;

(i)
(ii)

Introduction — Chapter 1
Licensing Objectives — Chapter 2

Page 5


https://www.swansea.gov.uk/article/4280/Statement-of-licensing-policy

Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

8.2

(iif)  Applications For Premises Licenses — Chapter 8

(iv)  Determining Applications — Chapter 9

(v)  Conditions attached to Premises Licenses — Chapter 10

(vi)  Promotion of Equality — Chapter 14 paragraphs 14.66 -14.67

Representations received include concerns regarding all four licensing
objectives.

Licensing objectives and aims

(a) Paragraph 1.4 Each objective is of equal importance.
There are no other statutory licensing objectives, so that the
promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration at
all times.

(b) General Principles
Paragraph 1.15 It is recommended that licence applicants
contact responsible authorities when preparing their
operating schedules.

Paragraphs 2.1 to 2.6 of the Guidance refer to Crime and Disorder
Paragraphs 2.7 to 2.9 refer to Public safety,
Paragraphs 2.15 to 2.21 refer to Public Nuisance and in particular —

(c) Public Safety
Paragraph 2.7 Licence holders have a responsibility to
ensure the safety of those using their premises, as a part of
their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of
people using the relevant premises rather than public
health which is addressed in other legislation.

(d) Crime and disorder
Paragraph 2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the
police as the main source of advice on crime and
disorder. They should also seek to involve the local
Community Safety Partnership (CSP).

(e) Protection of Children from Harm
Paragraph 2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible
authorities should expect applicants, when preparing an
operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out
the steps to be taken to protect children from harm when
on the premises.

Paragraph 10.46 The premises licence holder or club
premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the
sale or supply of alcohol. This must as a minimum require
individuals who appear to the responsible person (see
paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to

Page 6



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

produce on request, before being served alcohol,
identification bearing their photograph, date of birth, and
either a holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home
Office encourages licensed premises to accept cards
bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS)
hologram as their preferred proof of age, while
acknowledging that many other forms of identification meet
the requirements of the mandatory condition.

Paragraph 10.49 It is acceptable, and indeed encouraged,
for premises to have an age verification policy which
requires individuals who appear to the responsible person
to be under an age greater than 18 to produce such
identification on request. For example, if premises have a
policy that requires any individual that appears to be under
the age of 21 to produce identification that meets the
criteria listed above, this is perfectly acceptable under the
mandatory code.

Public Nuisance

Paragraph 2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities
and responsible authorities, through representations, to
consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is
appropriate to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to
specific premises licences and club premises certificates. It
is therefore important that in considering the promotion of
this licensing objective, licensing authorities and
responsible authorities focus on the effect of the licensable
activities at the specific premises on persons living and
working (including those carrying on business) in the area
around the premises which may be disproportionate and
unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise
nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.

Paragraph 2.19 Where applications have given rise to
representations, any appropriate conditions should
normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example,
the most sensitive period for people being disturbed by
unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early
morning when residents in adjacent properties may be
attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why there
is still a need for a licence for performances of live music
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances,
conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises
may also be appropriate to address any disturbance
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Paragraph 2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding

the premises, these are matters for the personal
responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual

Page 7



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

who engages in anti-social behaviour is accountable in
their own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable
for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following
relevant representations, that requires the licence holder or
club to place signs at the exits from the building
encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area,
or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places
on the premises instead of outside, and to respect the
rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

(g) Steps to Promote the Licensing Objectives
Paragraph 8.41 In completing an operating schedule,
applicants are expected to have regard to the statement of
licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of
the expectations of the licensing authority and the
responsible authorities as to the steps that are appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to
demonstrate knowledge of their local area when describing
the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing
objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities
are expected to publish information about what is meant by
the promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that
applicants can readily access advice about these matters.
However, applicants are also expected to undertake their
own enquiries about the area in which the premises are
situated to inform the content of the application.

Paragraph 8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to
obtain sufficient information to enable them to demonstrate,
when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote
the licensing objectives, that they understand:

* the layout of the local area and physical environment
including crime and disorder hotspots, proximity to
residential premises and proximity to areas where children
may congregate;

* any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’
proposed licensable activities; and

* any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction
initiatives or voluntary schemes including local taxi-
marshalling schemes, street pastors and other schemes)
which may help to mitigate potential risks.

Paragraph 8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the
locality will assist applicants when determining the steps
that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives. For example, premises with close proximity to
residential premises should consider what effect this will
have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal
policies to ensure the promotion of the public nuisance
objective. Applicants must consider all factors which may

Page 8



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and
where there are no known concerns, acknowledge this in
their application.

Paragraph 8.46 While applicants are not required to seek
the views of responsible authorities before formally
submitting their application, they may find them to be a
useful source of expert advice on local issues that should
be taken into consideration when making an application.
Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation
between applicants, responsible authorities and, where
relevant, local residents and businesses before
applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope
for disputes to arise.

Paragraph 8.47 Applicants are expected to provide
licensing authorities with sufficient information in this
section to determine the extent to which their proposed
steps are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives in
the local area. Applications must not be based on providing
a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing
objectives and applicants are expected to make it clear why
the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the
premises.

Paragraph 8.48 All parties are expected to work together in
partnership to ensure that the licensing objectives are
promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the
steps that applicants propose to take to promote the
licensing objectives, as set out in the operating schedule,
will very often translate directly into conditions that will be
attached to premises licences with the minimum of fuss.

Paragraph 8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no
measures will be appropriate to promote one or more of the
licensing objectives, for example, because they are
adequately covered by other existing legislation. It is
however important that all operating schedules should be
precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to
promote each of the licensing objectives.

(h) Hearings
Paragraph 9.32 Responsible authorities should try to
conclude any discussions with the applicant in good time
before the hearing. The 2005 Hearings Regulations permit
licensing authorities to extend a time limit provided for by
those Regulations for a specified period where it considers
this to be necessary in the public interest. For example, if
the application is amended at the last moment, the
licensing committee should consider giving other persons

Page 9



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

time to address the revised application before the hearing
commences. Where the authority has extended a time limit
it must forthwith give a notice to the parties involved stating
the period of the extension and the reasons for it.

Conditions attached to premises licences and club
premises certificates - Proposed conditions

Paragraph 10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives should emerge initially
from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective
licence or certificate holder, which they should carry out
before making their application for a premises licence or
club premises certificate. This would be translated into the
steps recorded in the operating schedule or club operating
schedule, which must also set out the proposed hours
during which licensable activities will be conducted and any
other hours during which the premises will be open to the
public.

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions
unless its discretion has been exercised following receipt of
relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result of a
hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not
necessary) that it is appropriate to impose conditions to
promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In
order to promote the crime prevention licensing objective
conditions may be included that are aimed at preventing
illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also
applies to minor variations.

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional
conditions will be appropriate to promote the licensing
objectives.

Proportionality

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions
should be tailored to the size, type, location and
characteristics and activities taking place at the premises
concerned. Conditions should be determined on a case-by-
case basis and standardised conditions which ignore these
individual aspects should be avoided. For example,
conditions should not be used to implement a general
policy in a given area such as the use of CCTV,
polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where
they would not be appropriate to the specific premises.
Conditions that are considered appropriate for the
prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell
alcohol or late night refreshment might include requiring a
premises licence holder to undertake right to work checks
on all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring

Page 10



Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

8.3

8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to
work check is retained at the licensed premises. Licensing
authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive
to the indirect costs that can arise because of conditions.
These could be a deterrent to holding events that are
valuable to the community or for the funding of good and
important causes. Licensing authorities should therefore
ensure that any conditions they impose are only those
which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives.

Paragraph 14.19 There can be confusion about the difference
between the “need” for premises and the “cumulative impact” of
premises on the licensing objectives, for example, on crime and
disorder. “Need” concerns the commercial demand for another
pub or restaurant or hotel and is a matter for the planning
authority and for the market. This is not a matter for a licensing
authority in discharging its licensing functions or for its statement
of licensing policy.

A copy of the Home Secretary’s Guidance has previously been
circulated to Members.

An up to date copy of the Guidance may be found via the following link:

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/upl
oads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised guidance issued under sec
tion 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 April 2018 .pdf

Determination Of The Application

The decision must be based on the individual merits of the application
and the representations received, with a view to promoting the licensing
objectives outlined in paragraph 5 above.

In addition in arriving at the decision Members should have regard to the
relevant provisions of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and
the Secretary of State’s Guidance as previously provided. Reasons
must be provided for any departures from the Policy or Guidance.

In reaching the decision the Committee must, having regard to the
representations, take such steps mentioned below (if any) as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:-

a. Grant the licence subiject to:

i) conditions that reflect the operating schedule, modified to such extent
as the authority considers appropriate for promotion of the licensing
objectives. Certain regulated entertainment under the Licensing Act
2003 (as amended) has been deregulated. Where entertainment is
deregulated, but licensable activities continue to take place on any
premises, any licence conditions imposed on a grant of a licence in

Page 11


https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf

Licensing Sub Committee 76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea. 6 June 2019

respect of any deregulated entertainment will be suspended.
i) any mandatory conditions relevant to the licence

b. Exclude any of the licensable activities to which the application relates.

c. Refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor.

d. Reject the application

The Licensing Sub Committee’s instructions are requested.

Background Papers: Licence Application
Contact Officer: Charles Gabe
Extension: 01792 635600

Page 12



-
aqegysayey) :Aq pajess wowno0p [e6o) JI\’
610¢/50/5). 180 80U20]) sastwald e Joj uoneslddy e se pasn aq Jou pnoys pue Afuo PUNOD BasSUEMS

00G:1 980

peoy S,Us|eH }S 9/ JO UoNBIoT sesodund sApensnjjj oy siueid sy amejsaqy Jobuly «

O1d buiddejyied 6 momnwooo;mzq..w
’ wy'9 -~

Appendix A




Appendix B

—T; T = Ny

! esco}>¢ rou}‘¢ ;
Cede re.c/ r T
<2 |r €. i
Colé{
Store
= —— B B
| Ne7c S7 Hel
g.aw\'sid. gYor ,]— ens R2d
S arsea.
s]'a; : =
ER . c&ev

As ‘surveved
’ |

Mm}, 2019

- w |
l 3“"1 ‘F';‘.’)‘ :o; 1Y
—Scale [llog

Yllere.

5
E‘R .-\“ 2( . Fl fe. c:‘]"iﬂ’ .gisl\gf‘_ Cg “eé

ER. E-Sc.al;r. rovke

- M Access Fo s Lo
o | :

o3 From st Helers ~d.
=
-~
| B r i Bt
= v E7 S
— B 2 S
= =5 ~ 2l Pre ,
| A 23 E

ST Helems pu Page 14



Appendix C

CADW DE CYMRU'N DDIOGEIL ¢ KEEPING SOUTH WALES SAFE

PC Jon Hancock,

Police Licensing Officer,

Swansea Central Police Station.
Jonathan.Hancock@south-wales.pnn.police.uk

Mrs Lynda Anthony.

The Divisional Licensing Officer,
City and County of Swansea,
Civic Centre,

Swansea.

ot May 2019

Police Observations to application for a premises
licence under the Licensing Act 2003.

| am in receipt of the above application made under the requirements of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the below mentioned premises

Premises: 76 St Helens Road
Swansea
Sa14BG

The application has been made by Mr Shui Fa Zhang

South Wales Police wish to make the following relevant representations in
relation to the aforementioned application. The representations are made on
the grounds that the granting of such a premise licence in its proposed form
will undermine the promotion of the key licensing objectives namely the
Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and the Prevention of Public
Nuisance, and Protection of Children from Harm.

This premises is currently trading as a Chinese supermarket situated on St
Helens Road near to the junction of Bryn Y Mor Road and Beach Street,

Swansea.

Mae Heddlu De Cymru yn croesawu derbyn goheblaeth yn Gymraeg a Saesneg.  South Wales Police welcomes receiving correspondence in Welsh and English.

Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn GRRIREYTECT CONVEVIER Gkt recelved in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
gohebu yn Gymrseg yn arwain at oedl.  in Welsh will not lead to & delay in responding.

Prif Gwnstabl Matt Jukes QPM, MA(Oxon)MSc, Chief Constable

Page 15


allison.lowe
FreeText
Appendix C�


CADW DE CYMRU'N'DDIOGEIL. » KEEPING SOUTH WALES SAFE

The applicant has provided the following proposed operating hours,

Supply of Opening Hours

Alcohol
Monday 1000-2100 1000-2100
Tuesday 1000-2100 1000-2100
Wednesday 1000-2100 1000-2100
Thursday 1000-2100 1000-2100
Friday 1000-2100 1000-2100
Saturday 1000-2100 1000-2100
Sunday 1000-2100 1000-2100

Having examined the application, it is extremely disappointing and concerning
that the applicant has offered no conditions within the Operating Schedule,
stating that “no additional conditions are considered appropriate as this is an
off licence application where the terminal hour is 21.00hrs. | draw your
attention to Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under Section 182 of
the Licensing Act 2003. Paragraph 1.4 of the Guidance stated the promotion
of the statutory objectives is a paramount consideration at all times.

Section 1.15 of the guidance recommends that licence applicants contact
responsible authorities when preparing their operating schedules. South
Wales Police actively encourages early engagement and consultation in order
to assist applicants, to work in a parthership approach, however
disappointingly, no such contact or advice has been sought on this occasion.

On Friday 8" June 2018, | assisted Swansea Council Trading Standards in
carrying out a premises visit at 76 St Helens Road. The premises at the time
of the visit was under the control and management of the applicant Mr Shui Fa
Zhang. The visit seized approximately 7520 illicit cigarettes which failed to
comply with labelling requirements and failed the non-self-extinguishing safety
test, thus causing a potential fire risk. There was also a quantity of alcohol that
was seized in the form of liquors and lagers, which were incorrectly labelled
and not covered by an alcohol premises licence. Swansea Council Trading
Standards are currently investigating and progressing this matter.

The operation and management of the premises in relation to the above
activities clearly undermines the licensing objective of crime and disorder and
public safety. The actions clearly put members of the public at risk whilst also
potentially operating unlawfully. When considering the offences and actions, it

Mae Heddiu De Cymru yn croesawu derbyn goheblaeth yn Gymraeg a Saesneg.  South Wales Police welcomes receiving correspondence in Welsh and Engfish.

Byddwn yn ateb goheblaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn GRRETECHdd C Pile received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  In Welsh will not fead to a delay in responding.

Prif Gwnstabl Matt Jukes QPM, MA(Oxon)MSc. Chief Constable

Page 16



CADW DE CYMRUW’N DDICGEL = KEEFING SOUTH WALES SAFE

raises concerns over the applicant's abilty to operate under a alcohol
premises licence, especially when the applicant has failed to acknowledge
any requirement for premises licence conditions. It raises the question that
even if licence conditions are placed on the licence, will they be adhered to
and complied with. The applicant has failed to provide any conditions relating
to crime and disorder such .as CCTV within the premises, and no incident
book which would show details of the date and time of all assaults, injuries,
accidents or refusals, as well as details of the members of staff involved, the
nature of the incident and the actionfoutcome which also clearly undermines
the public safety objective. Section 2.7 states Licence holders have a
responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their premises, as a part of
their duties under the 2003 Act.

This application fails to promote the protection from harm objective. Section
2.26 of the 182 guidance identifies that responsible authorities should expect
applicants, when preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule
to set out the steps to be taken to protect children from harm when on the
premises. The application fails to address any form of Challenge Age policy,
and has failed to identify how staff will trained in age verification and
intoxication, therefore putting children at risk of being exposed to alcchol
consumption from the premises. There is no refusal log proposed within the
application, which would include the date and time of the refused sale and the
names of the member of staff who refused the sale, thus recording any
potential underage issues

Section 8.41 of the 182 guidance states

“In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard
to the statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of
the expectations of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as
to the steps that are appropriate for promotion of the licensing objectives, and
to demonstrate knowledge of their local area when describing the steps they
propose to take to promote the licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and
responsible authorities are expected to publish information about what is
meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and to ensure that
applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However,
applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area
in which the premises are situated to inform the content of the application.

Mae Heddlu De Cymru yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraega Smneg South Wales Police welcomes receiving correspendence in Welsh and English.
Byddwn yn ateb goheblaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn G C received in Welsh will be ariswered in Welsh and corresponding
gohebu yn Gymraeg L to a delay in responding.

Prif Gwnstabl Matt Jukes QPM, MA(Oxon)MSc. Chief Constable

Page 17



CADW DE CYMRU’N DDIOGEL » KEEPING SOUTH WALES SAFE

Section 8.42 of the guidance states that applicants are in particular expected
to obtain sufficient information to enable them to demonstrate when setting
out the steps they propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, that
they understand

¢ The layout of the local area and physical environment including crime
and disorder hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity
to areas where children may congregate

e Any risk posed to the local area by the applicants proposed licensable
activities; and

e Any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or
voluntary schemes including taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors
and other schemes) which may help to mitigate potential risks.

Having examined the application, it is clear that the applicant has failed to
address any of these concerns within its description of the premises or within
the operating schedule.

Section 8.44 of the guidance states

“it is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when
determining the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives. For example, premises with close proximity to residential premises
should consider what effect this will have on their smoking, noise
management and dispersal policies to ensure the promotion of the public
nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all factors which may be
relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where there are no
known concerns, acknowledge this in their application

South Wales Police, being a Responsible Authority, hereby submits the above
representations which are reasonable and proportionate, focusing on the
nature of the premises, whilst ensuring the promotion of the Licensing
Objectives.

Mae Heddlu De Cymru yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg a Saesneg.  South Wales Police welcomes receiving correspondence in Welsh and English.

Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymrasg yn GRRETFECTd CERHHIERGID e received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.

Prif Gwnstabl Matt Jukes QPM, MA(Oxon)MSc. Chief Constable

Page 18



CADW DE CYMRU’N DDICGEL = KEEFING SOUTH WALES SAFE

| urge the Licensing Committee to support South Wales Police in our
representations and refuse the application.

The above information is submitted for your information and consideration.

Yours sincerely,

Police Licensing Officer
(On behalf of the Chief Officer of Police)

Mae Heddlu De Cymuru yn creesawu derbyn goheblaeth yn Gymraega Saesneg. South Wales Police welcomes recelving correspondence in Welsh and English,
Byddwn yn ateb goheblaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraegyn G d C received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and correspending
gohebu yn Gymrasg g o a delay in responding.

Prif Gwnstabl Matt Jukes QPM, MA(Oxon)MSc. Chief Constable

Page 19



/ Housing and Public Protection
(Q Cyngor Abertawe Trading Standards Department

\Y Swansea Council The Guildhall,

f Swansea, SA1 4PE

www.swansea.gov.uk

Mrs Lynda Anthony. Please ask for: Rhys Harries
The Divisional Licensing Direct Line: 01792 635524
Officer, )
City and County of Swansea, E-MRBiys.harries@swansea.
Civic Centre, Our Ref: gov.uk
Swanesaa Your Ref:

Date:
Dear Sir/ Madam,

| am in receipt of an application for a new premises license relating to the below
mentioned premises:

Premises: 76 St Helens Road
Swansea
SA1 4BG

The application has been made by Mr Shui Fa Zhang.Swansea Trading standards wish
to make the following relevant representations in relation to the aforementioned
application. The representations are made on the grounds that the granting of such a
license in its proposed form will undermine the promotion of the key licensing objective
namely Protection of Children from Harm.

Age restrictions are placed on goods generally as a result of specific threats or
concerns, some of the reasons for this are that:
¢ The product may cause physical harm to the purchaser if misused — e.g. tobacco

products/alcohol
The purchaser may harm others from misuse of the product — knives/alcohol

The product may increase a young person's vulnerability to harm caused by
others - e.g. alcohol

The basis for these representations are based on recent evidence obtained by Swansea
Council Trading Standards Officer who carried out an intelligence led visit to the
aforementioned premises. During the visit a quantity of illicit cigarettes were seized
along with a quantity of alcohol.

Checks made on the day confirmed that the premises did not have an alcohol license.

A sample of the cigarettes were tested and failed to meet the required safety standard
which means they do not self extinguish and can therefore pose a fire risk.

To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above. ( INVESTORS | BUDDSODDWYR
| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylitwch &'r person uchod. IN PEOPLE | MEWN POBL

Page 20



A sample of the alcohol was also send for analysis and failed to comply with the labelling
requirements.

As a result of this there is an going investigation which is nearing completion and has
been recommended for prosecution.

Although this investigation is not In relation to underage sales it is of concern that if the
applicants are already not complying with the required legislation at present then they
cannot guarantee that they will comply with the relevant age restricted legisiation.

lllicit tobacco is a huge problem in Swansea and it is of concern that young persons are
more likely to buy illicit tobacco due to the lack of controls in place by the sellers.

Having read the application the applicant has not offered any conditions to demonstrate
that they would be upholding the licensing objectives in anyway.

Therefore it is our position that the license is refused due to the pending prosecution
case against the individual.

Yours faithfully

RHYS HARRIES
TEAM LEADER
TRADING STANDARDS DIVISON

( ({» Cyngor Abertawe
Swansea Council

L/—_

Page 21



CYFARWYDDIAETH LLEOEDD

Canolfan Ddinesig, Heol Ystumllwynarth,
Abertawe, SA1 3SN

www.abertawe.qov.uk
DIRECTORATE OF PLACE

Civic Centre, Oystermouth Road,
Swansea, SA1 3SN

Charles Gabe WWW.swansea.gov.uk
:::gg::::g cD):\frligiec:n Gofynnwch am/ask for: Becca John
Civic Centre Liinell Unlong.;yrchoI/Direct Line: 01792-635600
Oystermouth Road E_—bost/E-mall. . Becca.John@swansea.gov.uk
Swansea E!n Cyf/Our Ref:
SA1 3SN Eich Cyf/Your Ref:

Dyddiad/Date: 10" May 2019
Dear Mr Gabe,

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 for
76 St Helen’s Road, Swansea, SA1 4BG

| am a Licensing Officer based in the Licensing Department of Swansea Council and as
such a Responsible Authority in relation to the above application for the grant of a
premises licence.

The operating schedule describes the proposed premises as a Chinese supermarket
which requires a licence to permit the sale of food goods containing alcohol and the sale
of some Chinese beers. The application seeks to permit the supply of alcohol off the
premises from 1000 hours to 2100 hours seven days a week. The proposed opening
hours of the premises are also 1000 hours to 2100 hours seven days a week.

| wish to make a representation against the above application which appears to have
been submitted without consultation with the Licensing Authority or any other
Responsible Authorities and without regard to the guidance to prospective applicants
provided on the Council's website. The guidance contains sample conditions which are
enforceable and uphold the licensing objectives. Whilst all applications may have
individual needs, many of the sample conditions on the website are relevant to the

majority of applications.

The applicant has not included any steps they intend to take to promote the four
licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention
of public nuisance and the protection of children from harm. The applicant has however
stated that “no additional conditions are considered appropriate as this is an off licence
application where the terminal hour is 21.00 hours".

The Licensing Authority, acting as a Responsible Authority, wouid request that the
following extracts are considered in determining this application:

To receive this information in alternative format, or in Welsh please contact the above. Y INVESTORS | BUDDSODDWYR
| dderbyn yr wybodaeth hon mewn fformat arall neu yn Gymraeg, cysylltwch &' person uchod. % IN PEOPLE | MEWN POBL

Page 22



Guidance Issued By The Home Secretary in April 2018 under section 182 of
Licensing Act 2003

Steps to promote the licensing objectives

8.41 In completing an operating schedule, applicants are expected to have regard to the
statement of licensing policy for their area. They must also be aware of the expectations
of the licensing authority and the responsible authorities as to the steps that are
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and to demonstrate knowledge
of their local area when describing the steps they propose to take to promote the
licensing objectives. Licensing authorities and responsible authorities are expected to
publish information about what is meant by the promotion of the licensing objectives and
to ensure that applicants can readily access advice about these matters. However,
applicants are also expected to undertake their own enquiries about the area in which
the premises are situated to inform the content of the application.

8.42 Applicants are, in particular, expected to obtain sufficient information to enable
them to demonstrate, when setting out the steps they propose to take to promote the
licensing objectives, that they understand:

o the layout of the local area and physical environment inciuding crime and disorder
hotspots, proximity to residential premises and proximity to areas where children may
congregate;

« any risk posed to the local area by the applicants’ proposed licensable activities; and

e any local initiatives (for example, local crime reduction initiatives or voluntary
schemes including local taxi-marshalling schemes, street pastors and other schemes)
which may help to mitigate potential risks.

8.44 It is expected that enquiries about the locality will assist applicants when
determining the steps that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
For example, premises with close proximity to residential premises should consider what
effect this will have on their smoking, noise management and dispersal policies to
ensure the promotion of the public nuisance objective. Applicants must consider all
factors which may be relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives, and where
there are no known concems, acknowledge this in their application.

8.46 While applicants are not required to seek the views of responsible authorities
before formally submitting their application, they may find them to be a useful source of
expert advice on local issues that should be taken into consideration when making an
application. Licensing authorities may wish to encourage co-operation between
applicants, responsible authorities and, where relevant, local residents and businesses
before applications are submitted in order to minimise the scope for disputes to arise.

8.47 Applicants are expected to provide licensing authorities with sufficient information in
this section to determine the extent to which their proposed steps are appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives in the local area. Applications must not be based on
providing a set of standard conditions to promote the licensing objectives and applicants
are expected to make it clear why the steps they are proposing are appropriate for the
premises.

8.48 All parties are expected to work together in partnership to ensure that the licensing
objectives are promoted collectively. Where there are no disputes, the steps that
applicants propose to take to promote the licensing objectives, as set out in the

\ « “ Cyngor Abertawe
NS Swansea Counclil

X —

Page 23



operating schedule, will very often translate directly into conditions that will be attached
to premises licences with the minimum of fuss.

8.49 For some premises, it is possible that no measures will be appropriate to promote
one or more of the licensing objectives, for example, because they are adequately
covered by other existing legislation. It is however important that all operating schedules
should be precise and clear about the measures that are proposed to promote each of
the licensing objectives.

Hearings

9.32 Responsible authorities should try to conclude any discussions with the applicant in
good time before the hearing. The 2005 Hearings Regulations pemit licensing
authorities to extend a time limit provided for by those Regulations for a specified period
where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest. For example, if the
application is amended at the last moment, the licensing committee should consider
giving other persons time to address the revised application before the hearing
commences. Where the authority has extended a time limit it must forthwith give a notice
to the parties involved stating the period of the extension and the reasons for it.

Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises certificates

10.4 The conditions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives
should emerge initially from the risk assessment carried out by a prospective licence or
certificate holder, which they should carry out before making their application for a
premises licence or club premises certificate. This would be translated into the steps
recorded in the operating schedule or club operating schedule, which must also set out
the proposed hours during which licensable activities will be conducted and any other
hours during which the premises will be open to the public.

10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has
been exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a result
of a hearing (uniess all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is appropriate to
impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing objectives. In order to
promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may be included that are
aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This provision also applies to
minor variations.

10.9 It is possible that in some cases no additional conditions will be appropriate to
promote the licensing objectives.

10.10 The 2003 Act requires that licensing conditions should be tailored to the size,
type, location and characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned.
Conditions should be determined on a case-by-case basis and standardised conditions
which ignore these individual aspects should be avoided. For example, conditions
should not be used to implement a general policy in a given area such as the use of
CCTV, polycarbonate drinking vessels or identity scanners where they would not be
appropriate to the specific premises. Conditions that are considered appropriate for the
prevention of illegal working in premises licensed to sell alcohol or late night refreshment
might include requiring a premises licence holder to undertake right to work checks on
all staff employed at the licensed premises or requiring that a copy of any document
checked as part of a right to work check is retained at the licensed premises. Licensing
authorities and other responsible authorities should be alive to the indirect costs that can
arise because of conditions. These could be a deterrent to holding events that are

‘\(é- Cyngor Abertawe
k Swansea Council
Y—/_

Page 24



valuable to the community or for the funding of good and important causes. Licensing
authorities should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those which
are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

10.46 The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol. This must as a minimum require individuals who appear to the responsible
person (see paragraph 10.39) to be under the age of 18 years of age to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth, and either a holographic mark or ultraviolet feature. The Home Office encourages
licensed premises to accept cards bearing the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS)
hologram as their preferred proof of age, while acknowledging that many other forms of
identification meet the requirements of the mandatory condition.

10.49 It is acceptable, and indeed encouraged, for premises to have an age verification
policy which requires individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under an
age greater than 18 to produce such identification on request. For example, if premises
have a policy that requires any individual that appears to be under the age of 21 to
produce identification that meets the criteria listed above, this is perfectly acceptable
under the mandatory code.

Statement of Licensing Policy considerations

Conditions

12.1 The Licensing Authority will only impose conditions on a premises licence or club
premises certificate which are consistent with the operating schedule and are
appropriate to promote the four licensing objectives. Standard conditions will not be
used. The Licensing Authority has developed a pool of conditions, which are provided in
the guidance for applicants. This guidance has been produced to assist applicants in
completing their operating schedule. The pool of conditions will be used to translate any
non- specific steps for the promotion of the licensing objectives, contained within the
operating schedule. Applicants are encouraged to consider the use of this pool of
conditions to address key issues when completing their operating schedule. (See
paragraph 18). All conditions should be -

o Clear

Enforceable

Evidenced

Proportionate

Relevant

Be expressed in plain language capable of being understood by those expected to
comply with them

12.2 The Licensing Authority will only consider imposing additional conditions on a
licence where relevant representations are received from responsible authorities or other
persons and such conditions are considered appropriate for the promotion of the
licensing objectives.

12.3 The Licensing Authority will attach conditions to licences or certificates that are
tailored to the individual size, style, characteristics and activities taking place at the
premises or event concerned.

Swansea Council

S =

k (-(' = Cyngor Abertawe
A

Page 25



The Licensing Objectives

18.2 An applicant for a premises licence or club premises certificate or for a variation of
such a licence or certificate will be expected to conduct a thorough risk assessment with
regard to the licensing objectives. The risk assessment will indicate the necessary steps
to be set out in the operating schedule to promote the licensing objectives. The
operating schedule will be translated into conditions and an applicant is encouraged to
use the pool of conditions available in the guidance. The applicant is also expected to
have regard to all existing legislation which impacts on the licensing objectives e.g. fire
safety, health and safety, in order to avoid the possibility of duplication. (See paragraph
11).

18.4 The Licensing Authority acknowledges that the steps an applicant may take to
promote the licensing objectives will vary depending on the type of premises and the
licensable activities taking place. Applicants are encouraged to consider the guidance
notes referred to in paragraph 12.1 when completing their applications.

General Issues
19.1 The Council will work in conjunction with all licensees, prospective licensees and
statutory agencies to promote the licensing objectives as required by the Act.

In the absence of any conditions volunteered by the applicant the Licensing Authority,
acting as a Responsible Authority, are unable to ascertain how any of the four licensing
objectives will be promoted. Specifically, as this premises intends to sell alcohol for
consumption off the premises, it is disappointing to read that the applicant considers that
no additional conditions are considered appropriate. In particular, the absence of
conditions relating to the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises, the age
verification of sales of alcohol and the training and recording of the same.

Please accept this as a representation by the Licensing Authority as a Responsible
Authority’s objection to the grant of the application.

Yours faithfully,

4

[y
AT

B

Becca John
Licensing Officer

‘k ~ Cyngor Abertawe
vaansea Council

Page 26



	Agenda
	3 Licensing Act 2003 - Section 17 Application for a Premises Licence - 76 St Helen's Road, Swansea SA1 4BG.
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C


